

## **Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club**

## Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club Inc Annual Report 2018

## **TEM** is proudly supported by



















## Contents

PRESIDENT'S REPORT3
MEN'S REPORT5
WOMEN'S REPORT9
JUNIORS' REPORT
MEN'S MASTERS REPORT14
COACHING DIRECTOR'S REPORT16
INDOOR REPORT
WOMEN'S MASTERS REPORT18
UMPIRES & OFFICIALS REPORT
COMMUNICATIONS
SOCIAL REPORT21
MARKETING & FUND RAISING22
CONSTANTIAN CLUB
TEM 2018 MEMBERSHIP SUMMARY23
THANK YOU FOR YOUR EFFORTS24
THANK YOU FOR YOUR EFFORTS (CONT)
THANK YOU FOR YOUR EFFORTS (CONT)
THANK YOU FOR YOUR EFFORTS (CONT)
AWARD WINNERS AND OTHER HONOURS



### **President's Report**

2018 saw our men's and women's first teams play in Premier League and our seconds teams play in Premier League Reserve.

Our men's and women's Reserves teams reached the finals, with the women winning their first final in a thrilling shootout in their elimination. Unfortunately, they lost their semi-final 0-1 against Footscray.

Overall, we had eight senior teams play finals with three teams being premiers – Women's Pennant C, Men's Pennant G and Men's Metro B Central. The other finalists were Women's Premier League Reserves, Pennant A and Pennant F and Men's Premier League Reserves and Metro B East.

In addition, our u16 Girl's Shield team were successful winning their premiership.

This is an outstanding effort on the part of many people. My congratulations to you all.

The challenge facing TEM is to maintain its Premier League status. Whether we remain in Premier League, which is our aim, will be determined by two elements:

- we must be sufficiently competitive so that we rise up the rankings; and
- we must be well administered.

There are many who believe the Premier League competition is too large and would reduce the number of teams in Premier League. That is not the TEM view.

The League Entry Criteria demand that we have a strong and vibrant junior section. There is no shortcut to a good junior section. It requires constant application and hard work.

TEM in conjunction with the Hawthorn Hockey Club was successful in seeking a Victorian Government 'Pick My Project' grant. This involved members of the local community voting to choose from a large list of potential projects. That we succeeded is testament to the large number of club members who voted for the project.

The 'Pick My Project' grant monies will be applied to renewing the lights on both H1 and H2 with 500 LUX LED lights. This should occur before the commencement of the next winter season. Both grounds will also now be compliant with the relevant Australian Standard so far as lighting is concerned.

Also over summer, the surface on H1 will be replaced. The new surface should be the best surface which has ever been laid at the Hawthorn Malvern Hockey Centre.

We are a "destination" club for girls under age hockey. We are one of only two clubs that offers at least two girls' only teams in each of the u16, u14 and u12 age groups. This reflects extremely well on those who have over the last few years championed the cause of girls' hockey.

Our aim must be to make TEM a "destination" club for boys in under age hockey.



### **President's Report (Continued)**

TEM could not exist without the volunteers who fill the myriad of positions which are essential for the operation of the Club. I thank each and everyone of you for your support of TEM.

The Club also needs a committee. Joe Hough, Tony Dudley, Phil Kennedy, Bruce Cook, Oenone Ritman, Ben Spincer, Christie Freeman, Pip Dudley, Sam Hill, Penny Senior, Braden Pitcher, Amelia Hough and Alan Leary have all given freely of their time to run the Club. Much of what they do is unnoticed, but without it TEM cannot exist. I thank all of them for their efforts and support throughout the year.

This year Joe Hough, Ben Spincer and Christie Freeman are stepping down from the committee.

Joe Hough has been involved with the management of TEM in one or another capacity (including a term as President) since 1976, Ben and Christie have filled the very challenging position of Junior Vice President with distinction.

Finally, I want to thank you, the ordinary members, for your support of me and TEM. TEM exists for you, but without your support TEM would not exist.

Michael Norbury

President

Remembrance Day 2018



### Men's Report

2018 saw the Men's section progress significantly with not only success on the field but also becoming a destination club. Growth in numbers of players was strong across the board with 32 new or returning players coming to the club increasing the overall playing numbers to 133.

This meant there were plenty of players to choose from each week averaging 19 players per team. It was also pleasing that our efforts in transitioning juniors to the senior section of the club with 14 juniors also playing senior hockey. At the highest level 6 players made their premier league debut.

We all like success and we had plenty this year with four out of seven teams making finals, three of these making the grand final and two flags won. This was built on a massive 192 or 84% increase in goals scored and a reduction of 110 or 28% in goals conceded.

In 2018 we were also improved with two high quality internationals, Jose Pedro Maldonado (JP) and Manu Prol Perez, who both had positive impacts on the field. JP was around for the majority of the season joining in preseason and soon set about sharing his skills, knowledge and passion for the game with his teammates, as Pennant B and Under 16 Coach, and running Wednesday night training. JP was also seen out and about umpiring and supporting the rest of the club.

The second year in Premier League proved to be transformative as further foundations were laid for success in the years to come. Michael Jones PL and Ben Lord PLR joined the coaching staff supported by Victor as Coaching Director and John Nicolosi and the crew from Melbourne Athletic Development Crew.

I would like to thank the coaches Michael, Ben, and JP, for their efforts. A special mention goes out to Cam MacPhie (PC), Andrew Needham, Matt Hooper and Greg Koster (PG) and Stuart MacPhie and Damien Haugh (MMC) and Todd Robinson (MMBE) for their efforts this year.

I would like to recognise the efforts of the selection committee, Victor, Michael, Ben, JP, Sam Hill, Cam MacPhie, who supported me as chairman of selectors each week in getting the right teams on the park, not an easy task.

I continue to be proud to be to be part of a club that continues to develop into its full potential gaining the respect of the wider hockey community proving week in and week out that we were not only up to the task but play the game in a spirit and intent with highest level of integrity and social responsibility to the game, officials, players and supporters alike. It is this last point that helps TEM stand out as a club of choice.

### Men's Report (Continued)

#### **Results for 2018**

Team	Played	Won	Lost	Draw	Goal For	Goal Against	Points	Finished
Premier League	20	3	14	3	31	74	12	13 <sup>th</sup> (16)
Premier League Reserve	20	10	5	5	47	35	35	6 <sup>th</sup> (16)
Pennant B	18	5	13	0	34	53	15	9 <sup>th</sup> (10)
Pennant C	18	3	13	2	32	71	11	9 <sup>th</sup> (10)
Pennant G	18	16	1	1	108	12	49	1 <sup>st</sup> (8)
Metro B Central	18	16	2	0	96	26	56	1 <sup>st</sup> (10)
Metro B East	18	15	3	0	73	17	53	2 <sup>nd</sup> (10)

### **Premier League**

Coach Michael Jones; Manager Carol Mackenzie; Captain Braden Pitcher

The second year in Premier League provided a step closer to our stated goal of regularly playing finals and ultimately becoming a top 4 team. Michael Jones stepped up from the reserves taking the lead as head coach and steadily built a foundation for future success.

This played out well with improvements in stats across the board, more goals scored, less conceded and more wins ending the season up three places from last to 13<sup>th</sup>. There were also young players making their PL debut, Sam Arch, Angus Burnett, Nathaniel Conlon, and Kobe Dudley.

This year's best and fairest was Jose Pedro Maldonado

## **Premier League Reserves**

Coach: Ben Lord; Manager Tony Dudley; Captain Andy Mills

2018 will go down as a successful year for the reserves, finishing a respectable 6th place on the ladder. It was great to be back playing in September unfortunately only lasting one week.

Ben Lord took the reins in his first year as coach. He did a sensational job throughout and really got the best out of the group. Compared to the previous year, there were more goals and more wins. There was a healthy mix of various age groups and a very even contribution from the group. Some standouts were Ola Marshall with his silky skills; Mitch Eager was the engine room in the middle; Andy Cook and Kobe Dudley came of age; Gus Burnett and Sam Arch were a dominant force down back; supported in goal by "Mr reliable" Adam Bailey.

This year's best and fairest was **Angus Burnett** 



#### Men's Report (Continued)

#### **Pennant B**

Coach Pedro Maldonado; Manager Chris Graven; Captain

It is fair to say Pennant B struggled this year. Relegated at the end of the previous season and an influx of newer players to the club, hope was high of a successful year. The development of up and coming junior players and players regularly called up to the reserves resulted in the team not being able to create cohesion and playout games. There were many lost opportunities, however, 5 strong wins ensured the team did not finish last and risk relegation.

This year's best and fairest winner was Alex Patterson

#### **Pennant C**

Captain/Coach Cam MacPhie; Manager Nicole MacPhie;

Pennant C finished the season with only three wins and two draws. The leadership team of Cam MacPhie and James McLaughlin led from the front, however, it was a season of missed opportunities, with many tight games being let slip late to scrappy goals, and an inability to execute in the D.

This year's best and fairest winner was Paul Shallard

#### Pennant G

Captain/Coach Matt Hooper and Greg Koster; Manager Oscar Dale

Following a round 1 tribute to a TEM life member Butch MacPhie who sadly passed away late last year, Pennant G came together featuring a raft of TEM dynasties. With 2 generations of Needhams, Andrew and Zac, 3 generations of Hoopers, Bill, Matt and Oscar regularly taking to the field. This is not to forget the two MacPhie brothers Jay and Sam. Led by the established core of veterans, TEM won the opening 12 games, despite only stringing together half a game at a time.

Following a draw in round 16 to warn against complacency TEM entered the finals on a high after scoring 30 goals in the final 2 rounds, followed up by winning both finals to earn a Pennant flag. Congratulations to all involved, especially Oscar Dale (Hooper) for managing the team.

This year's best and fairest winner was Andrew Needham

## **Metro B Central**

Captain Stu MacPhie; Manager Terry Chung

Metro B Central had a successful year taking out the ultimate prize winning a very exciting Grand-final against LaTrobe University. The diving goal from David Schiavinato, resulting in two broken ribs, will go down in folklore. Shevi also finished the year on top of the goal scorers with an impressive 29 goals. Finishing in first position with 16 wins from 18 rounds the team was always going to be hard to beat and, in the end, did not disappoint.

This year's best and fairest winner was Felix Chung



## Men's Report (Continued)

#### **Metro B East**

Captain Todd Robinson; Manager Faith Robinson

Metro B East had the opportunity this year to stand alone, playing in a different region to the other Metro team, allowing them to shine with a strong year finishing second with 15 wins. The only team with more wins on 17 was Doncaster who eventually won the Flag against TEM in a close contest.

This year's best and fairest winner was Jack Lund

**Tony Dudley** 

Men's VP

#### Women's Report

It has been a year of highlights for the Women's Division

We had over 20 new players and over 25 junior players that played in the senior teams.

We had excellent coaches this season. Thank you to each of our coaches for all the time and expertise they put into training, preparation and games:

- Ian Kleinschmidt (Premier League)
- Trent Bussell (PLR)
- Kris Tulloch (Pennant A)
- Leanne Downer (Pennant C)
- Tony Dudley (Pennant F) and
- Cam Macphie (Metro A).

In round 6 every women's team won. 6 wins from 6 matches. In round 14 we again had 6 wins from 6 matches.

All teams improved significantly over last year's season and 4 Women's teams (60 players) played finals. At the end of the season:

- PL were placed 9<sup>th</sup> of 16 teams
- PLR were placed 7<sup>th</sup> of 16 teams (and played finals)
- Pennant A were placed 4<sup>th</sup> of 10 teams (and played finals)
- Pennant C were placed 2<sup>nd</sup> of 10 teams (and played finals)
- Pennant F were placed 3<sup>rd</sup> of 8 teams (and played finals)
- Metro A were placed 8<sup>th</sup> of 10 teams

We had heart stopping penalty shoot outs for the first finals for PLR (against Camberwell) and Pennant C (against Mentone) and both teams won!

- Pennant F won its first finals match against MHSOB.
- Pennant A lost its first finals match against Camberwell and PLR lost its second finals match against Footscray.
- Pennant C went on to win the Premiership in a convincing win 4 1 against Mentone a masterclass by masters in the defence and youth in attack. The Club support for the Premiers was enormous!
- Our Pennant C team has been promoted to Pennant B and next year TEM will be one of 6 Clubs in Victoria with Women's teams in PL, PLR, Pennant A and Pennant B.

Thank you to our managers:

- Hannah Mackenzie (PL)
- Dave Douglas (PLR)
- Lisa Barham (Pennant A)
- Jen Eager (Pennant C)
- Bailey Ryan (Pennant F) and
- Lucinda Matthieson (Metro A).

Thank you to our Chair of Selectors, Teresa Leonard for the careful consideration that she applied to selections each week.

Thank you, Victor, for encouraging all players and for the work you have done from before pre-season and throughout the season.



## **Women's Report (Continued)**

Thank you, Pip Dudley, for organising umpires, uniforms and Indoor Hockey.

Miranda Ellis has organised Summer Hockey and we have over 50 players competing each week including 10 new players.

Pip has organised the Indoor Comp and we have 3 Women's Teams – the only Club to do so.

In short, we have love this season and Penny Senior (Women's Secretary) and I look forward to welcoming everyone back for the 2019 winter season.

Philip Kennedy Women's Vice-President 22 October 2018



## **Juniors' Report**

The TEM Junior Section has enjoyed another successful season in 2018 winning premierships in both the U16 Girls Shield and U12 Boys District competitions and fielding a team in the U18 competition for the first time.

The teams fielded in 2016 are below, we extend our thanks and gratitude to the coaches, managers and coordinators:

U18	Coach	Ass Coach	Manager
Coordinator – Hugh Mur	ray		
U18 District	Sam Arch		Hugh Murray
U16			
Coordinator – Fiona Tho	mas		
U16 Mixed Shield	Jose Pedro Maldonado	Nick Spincer	Steph Tadgell
U16 Girls Shield	Kris Tulloch	Claire Douglas	Anna Kinnear
	Mili Arrotea		
U16 Girls Pennant	Leesa Needham		Ken Barnes
U14			
Coordinator – Millie Ang	liss and Andrew Robinson		
U14 Mixed Shield	Ross Sudano	Chris Graven	Ben Spincer
U14 Mixed district	Cam Mackenzie		Justen Hutter
U14 Girls Shield	Charles Norbury	Kester Brown	Melissa Sweetland
U14 Girls Pennant	Matt Hooper		Vanessa Will
U12			
Coordinator – Michaela	Smith		
U12 Mixed Shield	Victor Romagosa	Sandy Marshall	Alison & Simon Baker
U12 Mixed District	Nick Spincer		Wendy Brown
U12 Mixed District	Curtis Stephens		Debbie Nisbet
U12 Girls Shield	Shabu Thomas		Claire & Iain Jennings
U12 Pennant	Jo Bowden	Teresa Leonard	Liz Murphy
U12 Pennant	Hannah Marshall		Rob Moulden

U10		
Coordinator – Palma Casona	ato	
U10	Shimona Albuquerque	
U10	Milagros Arrotea	
U10	Abbey Konieczny	
U10	Jenny Eager	
U10	Wendy Selle	
U10	Andy Cook	

### Junior's Report (Continued)

#### Strategy

We have a simple three-pronged strategy at TEM aimed at attracting, retaining and developing Juniors of all ages and abilities:

- Develop innovative new programs to attract new players to the Club
- Provide an environment to develop, nurture and retain players of all ages and abilities
- Ensure that we have a strong commitment to senior transition to ensure that players are able to develop into long-term senior players for the Club.

#### Growth

TEM Juniors is continuing to experience a growth in player numbers and we proudly fielded 12 full pitch teams this year, including seven girls-only teams. However, many of the teams were tight on numbers making it hard to field full teams in the depth of winter with teams scattered across the state.

Recruitment remains the single most important challenge facing any club and as we move into 2019 we plan to further increase playing numbers through a number of strategies to increase retention and attract new players from the local community, whilst protecting ourselves from the cancer of player poaching that is starting to re-emerge.

#### **Senior Transition**

TEM prides itself on its efforts to transition players of all abilities to senior hockey once they are physically able to stand up to the rigors of the senior game. Across the year, over 30 Juniors played regularly in senior teams. None of that is possible without the fantastically supportive environment created by the senior teams and this is a key point of difference for TEM as a hockey club.

It was particularly impressive to see junior players establishing themselves in both Premier League and Premier League Reserves teams.

## **Representative Hockey**

#### **Central Metro Flames**

TEM continues to have representatives on the Flames Committee and is fostering ongoing positive relationships with clubs in the Central Metro zone. Thank you to the TEM members, parents, and players who continue to support the Central Metro Flames initiatives.

We are very fortunate to be part of such an innovative and forward-thinking group of clubs — together we are progressing player and official development through initiatives such as Summer6s, Junior State Championships, Flames Development Colleges, and possibly most importantly the Quarter Pitch U10 competition that has become a model for U10 hockey development across the state.

Once again, TEM experienced a high participation rate of junior players with 36 kids representing the Central Metro Flames in the Junior State Championships - with the U17 Boys winning their competition.

#### Junior's Report (Continued)

## **State Representative Players**

The TEM Junior Division congratulates all 16 members who played State and National representative hockey during the 2018 season:

**Victoria U15 Girls** – Asha Newstead, Liv Wood, Claire Freeman, McKenzie Hughes, Enya Talbot, Emily Butler

Victoria U15 Boys - Oliver Marshall, Nick Spincer

Victoria U13 Girls – Lucy Dunlop, Alice Brown, Amelia Dethridge, Ella Paice

Victoria U13 Boys - BJ Graven, Jonny Spincer

**SSA U16 Girls** – Enya Talbot

SSV U16 Girls – Enya Talbot, Charlotte Ritman

SSV U12 Girls – Amelia Dethridge, Niveda Thomas

SSV U12 Boys – James Hillemacher

Christie Freeman and Ben Spincer Vice Presidents Juniors

#### **Men's Masters Report**

Five men's masters teams were again entered this year. The Monday night 35s and 45s were tracking well mid-season with the 35As holding 2nd place, and the 45B and 45Ds hovering around 4th spot. However, by Round 18, only the 35As were still in the four, holding 2nd spot well ahead of the rest.

For 2019 we need to attract more players to the over 35s teams, given that about half the current over 35s are eligible for over 45s, and most of the over 45s are eligible for over 50s!

#### Over 35A

**Andrew Martin** managed the team and they finished the home and away rounds in 2nd place. Unfortunately, they lost their first and second finals, so no medals, but most excellent results in the home and away games. **Steven Macumber** won their award for *Best & Fairest*.

#### Over 35C

The 35Cs were short of players on a number of nights and were regularly bailed out by double-up volunteers. At the end of the home and away rounds they finished in 8th place. The team was managed by **Terry Chung** and the *Best & Fairest Player* award went to **Joshua Ferguson**.

#### Over 45BSE

The team finished the home and away rounds in 6th place. The team was managed by **Ben Spincer** and **Cam Macphie** won their *Best & Fairest Player* award.

#### Over 45D

Having moved down from C grade to D grade the 45Ds had a reasonably good season. At round 17 they held 4th place and would have tasted finals if they had not lost in round 18. The team was managed by **Alan Leary** and their *Team Player* award went to **Paul Cassidy**.

#### Over 50B

The team's performance lifted in 2018, with great game time coaching by Rob Macphie. They finished in 7th place. The team was managed by **Alan Leary** and their *Team Player* award went to **Rob Macphie**. Players from other clubs who also played for TEM over 50Bs were John Condon, Craig Brendish, Chris Legge and Stuart Turnbull from Hawthorn, and Rodd Perrin from Doncaster.

#### **HMHC Summer Masters Competition**

Summer 2017/18 saw the continuation of the HMHC Summer Masters Competition running as 14 rounds on Monday nights from October through to March. The competition had six "equalized" teams comprised of both women and men players from Hawthorn, TEM and other clubs, with skills ranging from beginners to A-level.

The competition generated a net profit of \$5,794 which was shared between the two clubs on a player pro-rata basis.

### Team Results at End of Home and Away Games

Age	Gender	Grade/Team Name	<b>Ladder Position</b>
Masters	Men	Men's 35+ A	2nd (of 8)
Masters	Men	Men's 35+ C	8th (of 12)
Masters	Men	Men's 45+ B South East	6th (of 9)
Masters	Men	Men's 45+ D	6th (of 11)
Masters	Men	Men's 50+ B	7th (of11)

## Men's Masters' Report (Continued)

## **Team Awards**

Name		Age	Gender	Grade/Team Name	Award
Steven	Macumber	Masters	Men's	Over 35A	Best and Fairest
Joshua	Ferguson	Masters	Men's	Over 35C	Best and Fairest
Cam	Macphie	Masters	Men's	Over 45B South East	Best and Fairest
Paul	Cassidy	Masters	Men's	Over 45D	Team Player
Rob	Macphie	Masters	Men's	Over 50B	Team Player

## **Award Winners & Other Honours**

## **Representative Honours**

First	Family	Age	Team	Event	Comment	Role
				Australian Master's		
Nigel	Cann	over 55	Victoria	Championships	Mens	Player
				Australian Master's		
Barry	Eager	over 75	Victoria	Championships	Mens	Player
				Australian Master's		
Alan	Leary	over 70	South Australia	Championships	Mens	Player
				Masters 2018 World		
Steven	Macumber	over 35	Australia	Cup - Terrassa	Mens	Player
				Australian Master's		
David	Huett	over 55	Victoria	Championships	Mens	Player

Alan Leary Men's Masters

### **Coaching Director's Report**

#### Women's section Achievements

- Consolidation of new coaches in top squad (lan Kleinschmidt and Michael Jones).
- Reserves qualifying to play finals.
- Improved the space on the ground by opening Wednesday night training for Pennants C & F and Metro.
- Continued development of our young talented players.
- Wednesday night coach (JP Maldonado).

#### Women's section To improve

- Improve competitive mentality in top squad.
- Increase the number of players to fill the teams.
- Improve fitness levels of the top squad
- Increase the number of players at training on Wednesday night and staying for Wednesday Night Live.

#### Men's section Achievements

- Improvement in the physical, technical and tactical capacities of the top squad.
- Improved the space on the ground by opening Wednesday night training for Pennants C & G and Metro.
- Jose (JP) Maldonado did a great job at Wednesday night training.
- Reserves with Ben Lord had a great year managing to compete against all the teams in the competition with some really good results.
- Introduction of young talented players to the top squad with great performance.

## Men's section To improve

- Keep improving the playing group abilities to perform at the top level
- Keep introducing young talented players and recruit experienced players interested to join the club to compete for spots in top squad
- Improved support of our club juniors moving to seniors

## Junior's section Achievements

- U16 Girls Shield Premiers
- Healthy girls' numbers continued
- Increased number of coaches from top squad
- Increased number of players.
- A great goal keeping program run by Mili Arrotea

## Junior's Section To improve

- Need more boys in U10 and U12 age groups
- Need more female coaches.
- Need to find better advertising for our Hookin2Hockey programs.



#### **Indoor Report**

Indoor hockey at TEM is continuing to increase in popularity and become accessible to more players. Our indoor hockey activities are considerable, we currently have around 110 players, participating in 13 separate competitions, and we are building a section that is starting to be recognised as equal in status to men's, women's and junior sections at TEM:

- Open Men A
- Open Men B (three teams)
- Open Women A
- Open Women B (two teams)
- U18 Mixed Shield
- U15 Mixed Shield
- U15 Girls (2 teams)
- U13 Mixed Shield
- U11 Mixed Shield

TEM has also entered teams in Indoor Club Championships in all age groups and open competitions, where clubs compete against each other in a weekend tournament. The development for junior players participating in these competitions is significant, as they benefit from quality coaching in an intensive environment and form lasting friendships and memories from each experience.

We have started a separate Facebook group for U18 and Open players, to ensure information doesn't get lost in the men's and women's private groups. A separate, targeted group communication strategy also recognises that indoor hockey is a club activity that encompasses all age groups and genders equally, there are many overlaps between the various competitions, and as always there is a likelihood of girls and women playing in mixed indoor teams, and juniors contributing to senior teams.

Indoor is also an opportunity to develop club coaches, and this year we have appointed many young coaches to teams. Thank you to Bonnie Bonness, Harriet Ochsenbein, Charles Norbury, Cam McKenzie, Andrew Cook, and Kobe Dudley. We also have an array of extremely able parents and 'older' people who volunteer to take charge of junior teams, thank you to Matt Hooper, Shabu Thomas, Sandy Marshall and Victor Romagosa.

Hugh McLaughlin continues to provide dedicated and valuable support to our junior teams, by way of coaching, advice and mentorship. We are lucky to have such ready access to his knowledge and understanding of indoor hockey and willingness to help assemble teams and provide coaching resources. Due to the quality of our coaches and the culture of our club, our teams are competitive in every competition in which we participate, and our players deserve respect for the professional manner in which they conduct themselves, both on and off the pitch.

I look forward to seeing the profile of indoor hockey at TEM continue to grow, and more players making the most of the opportunities to develop their skills and love of hockey.

Pip Dudley Indoor Coordinator



## **WOMEN's Masters Report**

In 2018, there was one team in the Women's 35+ South East division.

It was a great season and enjoyed by the team.

The team finished in 9<sup>th</sup> position.

The best and fairest award this year went to Karen Jones.

We are looking to increase the number of players / teams next year.



#### **Umpires & Officials Report**

#### **UMPIRE DEVELOPMENT**

Under 10 matches were once again officiated by Central Flames umpiring squad. This is an amazing environment in which to learn umpiring. Beginner and developing umpires are provided with a strong support network at the ground every week in the form of co-umpires, umpire coaches and mentors. Many friendships are made, both within the club and with umpires from Central Flames clubs, skills are developed, the ability to make decisions improves, and confidence grows.

As with 2017, I ran a squad of 8-10 players from the U14 and U16 playing age group to umpire U12 matches. The requirement that each club supplies one umpire to every U12 match is becoming increasingly difficult to manage, as there are not many parents and umpires willing or able to travel to distant venues for a single game. This limits the opportunities for both the umpire that travels and for other umpires who are not able to travel. In 2019 we are hoping that Hockey Victoria will change the requirement so that clubs supply umpires at the home venues. This will improve our capacity to roster umpires to consecutive games, to umpire with friends, to develop stronger relationships with teams and other officials, and most importantly to be coached and mentored.

TEM has developed a strong relationship with the umpiring coordinators at Hockey Victoria and this has enabled us to consistently roster young umpires to matches on Friday nights. We also have the ability to free up senior appointments, so we can develop keen club umpires at the senior level. We have several young umpires who are no longer playing juniors who should be pushing for Level 1 accreditation in 2019. This is an exciting prospect as it will set the standard for other developing umpires.

At the senior level, I have been very appreciative of the support from a core group of people who either umpire and/or are interested and keen to help and source umpires for tricky fixtures. This group includes Nick Barnes, Joe Connell, Michael Shipton, Sam Hill and Annabel Kennedy. Joe and Annabel also stepped in to organise senior and junior rosters for 2 weeks while I was away and they both did a great job.

At the masters' level, we had a group of umpires who regularly officiated at home matches on Monday and Wednesday evenings. Players and umpires alike benefit from seeing the same people regularly braving the elements together and relationships are fostered and strengthened.

I am looking forward to continuing the umpire development program in 2019. Plans include regular coaching and mentoring, and a recognition program, to ensure that umpires have the tools to progress to the next level of competency and that they feel recognised and valued within the club.

Pip Dudley
Umpire Development Coordinator

#### **Communications**

## **Summary**

This season, the engagement with our social media channels from our TEM community and beyond has gone from strength to strength. We have surpassed 900 page likes on Facebook and are sitting on 640 followers on Instagram – giving TEM a great platform to reach current members and prospective players.

Facebook posts this season predominantly focused on promoting the following key areas each week:

- Team fixtures for each upcoming round
- Player milestone recognition
- PL debutants
- Upcoming social events
- Representative achievements
- Event photos
- Club finals fixtures and results

Instagram was used as a supporting platform that aimed to feature the fantastic action photos taken by Stu Westmore and take a more light-hearted approach to showing the culture and achievements of the club. We have had several of our Instagram posts re-posted by accounts such as Hockey Victoria, Just Hockey and Mazon – further amplifying our club within the hockey community.

#### **Actions for 2019**

Moving forward, I believe there are plenty of new ways that we can promote TEM online and communicate with our community – with the overarching aim of boosting our culture of inclusivity and recognising the great people of TEM.

- Club promotional video: we have seen the highest level of engagement on our past video posts a well-produced TEM club video that highlights the best aspects of our club could be used on our website as well as our social media channels.
- Social event wrap up videos: a few were produced last season (iPod Shuffle Night + Friday Night Lights).
- Humans of TEM: A 'Humans of New York' style of interview post that can occur fortnightly/monthly and features a different TEM member each time.
- The potential return of TEMPO: an entertaining digital newsletter that provides a wrap up of results, player interviews, news of the month, comedy segments and photos.
- A heightened focus on promoting HV rounds such as Fair Go Sport, Women's Round and Men's Health Round.

## **Final Thoughts**

I would like to thank Braden Pitcher for his design expertise, Stu Westmore for making it so easy for TEM to have the best-looking Instagram account around and Bruce Cook and Nicki Pitcher for their help in recognising club achievements.

I would also love to hear any ideas that TEM club members have to improve our communications for 2019!

Amelia Hough Communications Officer



## **Social Report**

It has been another dominant performance off the field for TEM's social team this year, hosting a variety of inclusive events and raising much needed funds for the Club.

The unofficial social committee of 2018 consisted of Amelia Hough, Nicki Pitcher and Darci Kleinschmidt; these volunteers worked tirelessly to ensure that our brilliant social culture was maintained within the club and also well noticed amongst the wider hockey community.

This season we hosted 4 premier events alongside our usual home round festivities, these events were:

- iPod Shuffle Night
- Trivia Night
- Friday Night Lights
- Presentation Night

Another key highlight was the record number of attendees we received at Preso Night. We had greater numbers than last year, of more than 200, with a fantastic cross section of seniors, juniors playing seniors, masters, family and friends of players.

As a social committee we are all ears for ways in which we can improve and always on the lookout for new and exciting event ideas. If you have any interest in joining and think you have something to add please hit us up in 2019! Please contact Braden Pitcher to do so.



#### **Marketing & Fund Raising**

A major issue for the Club continues to be our inability to identify somebody to formally fill the critically important role of Marketing Officer. Our efforts in this area are crucial if we are to continue with all of our programs and to try and keep the membership fees at a reasonable level.

However, we have been very fortunate that Nicole Pitcher has continued to support the Club in this vital area and perform many of the tasks that would normally have been undertaken by the Marketing Officer. We are extremely grateful to Nicole for her efforts which have been crucial to us yet again throughout 2018.

Highlights of the year include an extension of our sponsorships with East Malvern Community Bank® Branch of the Bendigo Bank, Histolab, Hawthorn Hotel, knp solutions, Nextgen, Just Hockey, Team Apparel and TAC through its "Towards Zero" program.

Thanks also to Mt Zero Log Cabins, Steph Morgan and Palma Casonato, Hough Gardens, Aaron Kleinschmidt, High McLaughlin for donating prizes to the major prizes at this year's Trivia Night.

We would also like to re-iterate our thanks to all sponsors – your support of TEM is greatly appreciated.

#### **Constantian Club**

Under normal circumstances, it is not possible for individuals to obtain a tax deduction when donating money to sporting Clubs. The exception to this is when donations are made through the Australian Sports Foundation.

The Constantian Club has been created to take advantage of the opportunities available to TEM to raise funds through the ASF.

Though the ASF and the Constantian Club, tax deductible donations can be made to TEM for the purpose of "raising funds to provide assistance to players, umpires and coaches in the areas of travel, equipment and coaching clinics and for the collection, preservation and display of historical club memorabilia." These donations can be made publicly or anonymously.

Thanks to Fred Ball, Leesa Needham and Bruce Cook for their stewardship of the Constantian Club.

Oenone Ritman Secretary



## **TEM 2018 Membership Summary**

(effective 9 November 2018)

			2018	2017		-/	%
Lucian	Female	Male	Total	Totals	% F	% M	growth
Junior	24	22	<b>5</b> 7	70	EO 60/	40 40/	200/
Intraclub u6, u8, u10	34	23	57 163	79 151	59.6%	40.4%	-28%
u12,14,16	91 4	72 5	163 9	151 30	55.8% 44.4%	44.2% 55.6%	8% -70%
Summer & Indoor (only)  Junior Total	129	100	229	260	56.3%	43.7%	-12%
Julior Total	123	100	223	200	30.376	43.7 /0	-12/0
Senior							
also Junior	17	7	24	24	70.8%	29.2%	0%
"std"	57	85	142	123	40.1%	59.9%	15%
student	31	32	63	59	49.2%	50.8%	7%
Summer & Indoor (only)	14	20	34	32	41.2%	58.8%	6%
Senior Total	119	144	263	238	45.2%	54.8%	11%
Masters							
also Seniors	6	11	17	16	35.3%	64.7%	6%
1 comp	10	47	57	59	17.5%	82.5%	-3%
2 comps		6	6	6	0.0%	100.0%	0%
Summer (only)	4	2	6	7	66.7%	33.3%	-14%
Masters Total	20	66	86	88	23.3%	76.7%	-2%
Total Competition	245	292	537	546	45.6%	54.4%	-1.6%
Introductory programs (incl H2H)							
Introductory programs only	9	11	20	27	45.0%	55.0%	-26%
progressed to other Junior							
programs	4	7	11	7	36.4%	63.6%	57%
Total Introductory programs (incl							
Н2Н)	13	18	31	34	41.9%	58.1%	-9%
% who have progressed during 2018	30.8%	38.9%	35.5%	20.6%			
Non-Competition							
Non-Playing Life	4	4	8	9	50.0%	50.0%	
Social/Non-Playing	3	5	8	11	37.5%	62.5%	-27%
Total Non-Competition	7	9	16	20	43.8%	56.3%	-20%
GRAND TOTAL	261	312	573	593	45.5%	54.5%	-3%

#### **Thank You For Your Efforts**

It takes the efforts of many people to put our teams onto the field and to organise our various events and programs. Without this support the Club would just not function. We'd like to thank the following people for their time and energy supporting the Club in various capacities during the year. If we've made a mistake or you have been overlooked from this list, please accept our sincere apologies.

Committee	Coaches - Winter	Coaches - Winter
Alan Leary	Abby Konieczny	Leesa Needham
Amelia Hough	Andy Cook	Matt Hooper
Ben Spincer	Ben Lord	Michael Jones
Braden Pitcher	Cam Macphie	Mili Arrotea
Bruce Cook	Cameron Mackenzie	Nick Spincer
Christie Freeman	Charles Norbury	Pedro (JP) Maldonado
Joe Hough	Chris Graven	Ross Sudano
Michael Norbury	Claire Douglas	Sam Arch
Oenone Ritman	Curtis Stephens	Sandy Marshall
Penny Senior	Greg Koster	Shabu Thomas
Philip Kennedy	Hannah Marshall	Shimona Albuquerque
Pip Dudley	Ian Kleinschmidt	Teresa Leonard
Sam Hill	Jenny Eager	Tony Dudley
Tony Dudley	Jo Bowden	Trent Bussell
	Kester Brown	Victor Romagosa
	Kris Tulloch	Wendy Selle
	Leanne Downer	
Fundraising & Sponsorship	International Host Families	Selectors (Chairpersons)
Fran Moodie	Kennedy Family	Teresa Leonard
Nicole Pitcher	Mackenzie Family	Tony Dudley
Michael Norbury	Dudley Family	
Bruce Cook		

## Thank you for Your Efforts (cont)

## Winter Managers and Co-ordinators

Alan Leary Alison Baker **Andrew Martin Andrew Robinson** Anna Kinnear **Bailey Ryan** Ben Spincer Carol Mackenzie Chris Graven Claire Jennings **Dave Douglas Debbie Nisbet** Faith Robinson **Fiona Thomas** Hannah Mackenzie **Hugh Murray lain Jennings** Jenny Eager

## Winter Managers and Co-ordinators

Justen Hutter

Ken Barnes Lisa Barham Liz Murphy Lucinda Matthieson Melissa Sweetland Michaela Smith Millie Angliss Nicole MacPhie Oscar Dale Palma Casonato Rob Moulden Simon Baker Steph Tadgell Terry Chung **Tony Dudley** Vanessa Will Wendy Brown

## Social Events & Presentation Night

Amelia Hough
Anna Clothier
Braden Pitcher
Darci Kleinschmidt
Guy McGregor
Hugh McLaughlin
Jacqui Gibbons
Nicki Pitcher
Sophia O'Beirne
Stuart Westmore

#### **Technical Bench**

Bruce Cook
Chris Graven
Kris Tulloch
Lisa Barham
Winnie Eager
Ian Pitcher

## **Ball Girls / Boys**

Jen Wood Michaela Smith

#### Photos, Video & Multimedia

Amelia Hough Braden Pitcher Bronte Hough David Ritman Michael Norbury Nicki Pitcher Stuart Westmore Will Harty

## нмнс

Carol McKenzie Grenville Dawson Harry Buring Linda Dawson Rob MacPhie Tony Dudley

## Thank you for Your Efforts (cont)

**Umpires - Juniors** Annabel Kennedy Bailey MacPhie Clea Robinson **Duncan Geddes** Eliza Shrimpton Emma Laird Faith Cullinan **Kobe Dudley** Liadan Robinson **Lucy Dunlop** Mili Arrotea **Mridula Thomas Nick Barnes Nick Spincer** Sophie Hillemacher Stella Hammet

**Umpires - Seniors** Annabel Kennedy Ben Lord **Bronte Hough** Cam Murray **Charles Norbury** Chris Graven Jenny Eager Joe Connell Jose Maldonado **Kobe Dudley** Manu Pol Perez Michael Shipton Mili Arrotea Pip Dudley Sam Kleinschmidt Tim Edeny **Tony Dudley** 

Club Merchandise
Anna Clothier
Ben Spincer
Leesa Needham
Pip Dudley
Bruce Cook

Constantian Club
Fred Ball

Fred Ball Leesa Needham Bruce Cook

**Fitness**John Nicolosi
Tom Templeton

**MPIO** Chris Graven

**Website** Ben Spincer



## Thank you for Your Efforts (cont)

_	_		
Summer	ጼ	Indoor	Coaches

Andrew Cook
Bonnie Boness
Cam McKenzie
Charles Norbury
Chris Graven
Harriet Ochsenbein
Hugh McLaughlin
Kobe Dudley
Shabu Thomas
Victor Romagosa
Annabel Kennedy
Charlotte Ritman

## Summer & Indoor Managers & Coordinators

Alan Leary Ben Spincer Braden Pitcher Matt Hooper Miranda Ellis Sandy Marshall Shabu Thomas Victor Romagosa

## **Historical & Player Records**

Bruce Cook Michael Norbury Paul Lofthouse

## **Post Training Dinners**

Hugh McLaughlin Sophie O'Beirne Cam MacPhie Kris Tulloch Palma Casonato Tahlia MacPhie

Victor Romagosa



## **Award Winners and Other Honours**

We would like to recognise and acknowledge the achievements of the following people in 2018.

## **Club Perpetual Trophies and Awards**

## Seniors

Palma	Casonato	Bruce Hulston Perpetual Trophy - Best Club Person Award
Tony	Dudley	Bruce Hulston Perpetual Trophy - Best Club Person Award
Hugh	McLaughlin	Bruce Prossor Perpetual Trophy – Services to Men's Hockey
Hannah	McKenzie	Mary Lofthouse Award for Services to Women's Hockey
Nick	Barnes	Mary (Mouse) Dobson Perpetual Trophy – Services or Excellence in Umpiring
Cam	MacPhie	Keith Needham Perpetual Trophy for Services to, or Excellence in, Coaching
Katie	Bishop	Mike (Grumpy) Taylor Award, Most Improved Female Player
Sam	Arch	Joe Hough Snr Perpetual Award, Most Improved Male Player

## **Juniors**

Juliiois		
Stella	Crawford-Rust	Mike Taylor Memorial Award for the best Junior Club person
Charles	Norbury	Ron Penpraze Memorial Award for Most Conscientious and Commendable Contribution to Junior Girls Hockey
Chris	Graven	Barry Penpraze Perpetual Trophy for services to Junior Boys Hockey
Enya	Talbot	Sonia Henderson Memorial Trophy for Dedicated Achievement by a Junior Girl
Oliver	Marshall	Grant MacPhie Memorial Shield for Dedicated Achievement by a Junior Boy
Eliza	Shrimpton	Golden Gloves Award for a Junior Goalie
Annabel	Kennedy	Sportsmanship Medal
Duncan	Geddes	Sportsmanship Medal



6<sup>th</sup>

#### **Team Results**

Men's Premier League 13th 8<sup>th</sup> Men's Premier League Reserve 9<sup>th</sup> Men's Pennant B 9<sup>th</sup> Men's Pennant C

Men's Pennant G **Premiers** Men's Metro B Central **Premiers** Men's Metro B East Runners-Up

9<sup>th</sup> Women's Premier League Women's Premier League Reserve 6<sup>th</sup> 4<sup>th</sup> Women's Pennant A

Women's Pennant C **Premiers** 

3<sup>rd</sup>Women's Pennant F 8<sup>th</sup> Women's Metro A Central Nth West Men's 35 + A 3<sup>rd</sup> 8<sup>th</sup> Men's 35 + C 9<sup>th</sup> Men's 45 + B South East 6<sup>th</sup> Men's 45 + D **7**th Men's 50 + B Women's 35 + B South East 9<sup>th</sup>

u18 Mixed District Nth Central 5<sup>th</sup> u16 Mixed Shield B

u16 Girls Shield **Premiers** 

8<sup>th</sup> u16 Girls Pennant 9<sup>th</sup> u14 Mixed Shield B u14 Mixed District Central 4<sup>th</sup> 3<sup>rd</sup> u14 Girls Shield 8<sup>th</sup> u14 Girls Pennant NW 5<sup>th</sup> u12 Boys Shield B

u12 Boys District Central - Hurricanes Runners Up

4<sup>th</sup> u12 Boys District Central - Thunder u12 Girls Shield 4<sup>th</sup>



u12 Girls Pennant Central West – Lightning 8<sup>th</sup>
u12 Girls Pennant Central West – Storm 7<sup>th</sup>

## **Team Awards**

First	Family	Team	Award
Karen	Jones	Women's 35B Sth East	Best & Fairest
Steven	Macumber	Men's 35A	Best & Fairest
Josh	Ferguson	Men's 35C	Best & Fairest
Cam	MacPhie	Men's 45B Sth East	Best & Fairest
Paul	Cassidy	Men's 45D	Best & Fairest
Rob	MacPhie	Men's 50B	Best & Fairest
Sarah	Tulloch	Women's Premier League	Best & Fairest
Rachael	King	Women's Premier League Reserves	Best & Fairest
Rebecca	Chapman	Women's Pennant A	Best & Fairest
Georgina	Kennedy	Women's Pennant C	Best & Fairest
Alice	Whitford	Women's Pennant F	Best & Fairest
Mary	Lofthouse	Women's Metro A Central NW	Best & Fairest
Jose (JP)	Maldonado	Men's Premier League	Best & Fairest
Angus	Burnett	Men's Premier League Reserves	Best & Fairest
Alex	Patterson	Men's Pennant B	Best & Fairest
Paul	Shallard	Men's Pennant C	Best & Fairest
Andrew	Needham	Men's Pennant G	Best & Fairest
Felix	Chung	Men's Metro B Central	Best & Fairest
Jack	Lund	Men's Metro B East	Best & Fairest
Cameron	Murray	u18 Mixed District Nth Central	Best & Fairest
Ben	Hughes	u18 Mixed District Nth Central	Coaches Award
Oliver	Marshall	u16 Mixed Shield B	Best & Fairest
Bailey	MacPhie	u16 Mixed Shield B	Coaches Award
Olivia	Wood	u16 Girls Shield	Best & Fairest
Stella	Crawford-Rust	u16 Girls Shield	Coaches Award
Emma	Laird	u16 Girls Pennant	Best & Fairest
Liz	Frank	u16 Girls Pennant	Coaches Award
Daniel	Suzor	u14 Mixed District Central	Best & Fairest
Joshua	Mac	u14 Mixed District Central	Coaches Award
Asha	Newstead	u14 Girls Shield	Best & Fairest
Dana	Freeman	u14 Girls Shield	Coaches Award
Ava	Hooper	u14 Girls Pennant NW	Best & Fairest
Ashleigh	Ting	u14 Girls Pennant NW	Coaches Award
Amelia	Dethbridge	u12 Girls Shield	Best & Fairest
Niveda	Thomas	u12 Girls Shield	Best & Fairest
Eva	Nathan-Valentine	u12 Girls Shield	Coaches Award
Sophia	Crutchfield	u12 Girls Pennant Central West - Storm	Best & Fairest
Sascha	Moulden	u12 Girls Pennant Central West - Storm	Coaches Award
Lucy	Bowden	u12 Girls Pennant Central West - Lightning	Best & Fairest
Ava	Coughlin	u12 Girls Pennant Central West - Lightning	Coaches Award



James	Hillemacher jnr	u12 Boys Shield B	Best & Fairest
Sam	Edney	u12 Boys Shield B	Coaches Award
Remy	Grutzner	u12 Boys District Central - Thunder	Best & Fairest
Giles	Debeljak	u12 Boys District Central - Thunder	Coaches Award
Toby	Brown	u12 Boys District Central - Hurricanes	Best & Fairest
Arkin	Williams	u12 Boys District Central - Hurricanes	Coaches Award



## **Premiership Players**

## 2018 u16 Girl's Shield Ron Penpraze Shield

## 2018 Women's Pennant C

Coach

Captain

Player/Manager

Mili	Arrotea	Coach	Sarala	Baskaran	
Emily	Butler		Karen	Bussell	
Stella	Crawford-Rust		Kim	Davie	
Clare	Douglas	Coach	Leanne	Downer	
Ellie	Dwyer		Ellie	Dwyer	
Georgina	Hiam		Jenny	Eager	
Annabel	Kennedy	Captain	Lue	Hanson	
Anna	Kinnear	Manager	Karen	Jones	
Sami	Muir		Georgina	Kennedy	
Asha	Newstead		Elise	MacPhie	
Норе	Pengilly		Julie	Mansfield	
Eugenie	Rickard		Fran	Moodie	
Charlotte	Ritman	Captain	Beth	Redding	
Eliza	Shrimpton		Clea	Robinson	
Enya	Talbot		Eliza	Shrimpton	
Mridula	Thomas		Kris	Tulloch	
Kris	Tulloch	Coach	Trish	Young	
Olivia	Wood				

#### 2018 Men's Pennant G

#### 2018 Men's Metro B Central

Ben	Amor		Bill	Bearder	
Oscar	Dale	Player/Manager	Felix	Chung	
Conor	Game		Terry	Chung	
Sam	Hill		Finley	Edmonds	
Matt	Hooper		Edward	Elder	
Bill	Hooper		Chris	Goldie	
Greg	Koster	Captain	Damian	Haugh	Captain
Sam	MacPhie		Justen	Hutter	
Jay	MacPhie		Stuart	MacPhie	
Roman	Mykytowycz		Jarrod	McCrum	
Andrew	Needham		Guy	McGregor	
Brett	Paton		Matt	Mullins	
Matt	Robbins		Noah	Murphy	
Corey	Shipton		Lyndon	Robertson	
Danny	Thien		David	Schiavinato	
Zac	Williamson		Brendan	Wilson	

#### 2017 u15 Girl's Indoor

Alice Brown

Kester Brown Coach

## Lucy Dunlop
Sophie Hillemacher
Annabel Kennedy
## Georgina Kennedy

Phil Kennedy Manager

**Emma** Laird ## Kate Laird Katie Leishman ## Samantha Love ## Asha Newstead Eugenie Rickard Clea Robinson ## Eliza Shrimpton

## qualified for the Grand Final but unavailable to play

## **Milestone Senior Games**

724 Mary Lofthouse - continuing a Club record

600 Cam MacPhie

450 Matt Hooper

400 Bill Bearder,

350 Palma Casonato, Fiona Troise

300 Jenny Eager, Karen Bussell

250 Garth Dawson, James Heaney, Sarah Tulloch

200 Amelia Hough, Jonathon Stewart, Anna Clothier, Emily Tulloch, Alex Baer, Tim Belza, Alice Tulloch

150 Sam Hill, Mitch Eager, Todd Robinson, Tom Casey, Carly Bogatin

Andrew Cook, Oliver Ritman, Cam McKenzie, Steve Miller, Sam Arch, Rebecca Chapman, Dan Mioni, Bonnie Boness, Kobe Dudley, Fiona Thomas, Chris Goldie, Rachel Graven, George Hurley, Ben Amor



## **Representative Honours**

Congratulations to the following people who were selected in representative sides in 2018 (in alphabetical order by Family Name)

First	Family	Age	Team	Additional Comments	Tour/Event
Camryn	Bailey	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
James	Bower	over 35	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Alice	Brown	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Alice	Brown	u13	Victoria Venom (1)	Runners Up	National Championships
Karen	Bussell	over 55	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Emily	Butler	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Emily	Butler	u15	Victoria White		National Championships
Nigel	Cann	over 55	Victoria, Div 2	Premiers	National Masters Championships
Othello	Coates	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Amelia	Dethbridge	u12	School Sport Victoria		Schools Sports Australia, National Championships
Amelia	Dethbridge	u13	Victoria Volt (2)		National Championships
Leanne	Downer	over 60	Victoria	Coach	National Masters Championships
Lucy	Dunlop	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Lucy	Dunlop	u13	Victoria Venom (1)	Runners Up	National Championships
Ellie	Dwyer	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Barry	Eager	over 75	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Jenny	Eager	over 40	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Hugh	Ford	u/13	Victoria		National Indoor Championships
Jade	Frame	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Claire	Freeman	u15	Victoria Blue		National Championships
BJ	Graven	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
BJ	Graven	u13	Victoria Venom (1)		National Championships
Rachel	Graven	u18	Victoria		National Championships
Eliza	Grey	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Lue	Hanson	over 55	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Maisie	Henshaw	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Sophie	Hillemacher	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
James	Hillemacher (Jnr)	u12	School Sport Victoria		Schools Sports Australia, National Championships
James	Hillemacher (Jnr)	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
David	Huett	over 55	Victoria, Div 2	Premiers	National Masters Championships
Mackenzie	Hughes	u15	Victoria White		National Championships



# **Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club**

Mackenzie	Hughes	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Gemma	Kahanoff	u/15	Victoria		National Indoor Championships
Annabel	Kennedy	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Georgina	Kennedy	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Zoe	Kleinig	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Alan	Leary	over 70	South Australia	Premiers	National Masters Championships
Mary	Lofthouse	over 65	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Samantha	Love	u/13	Victoria		National Indoor Championships
Tom	Love	u/13	Victoria	Co-Captain	National Indoor Championships
Steve	Macumber	over 35	Australia	World Champions	World Masters Championships
Steve	Macumber	over 35	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Oliver	Marshall	u/15	Victoria	Runners Up	National Indoor Championships
Oliver	Marshall	u15	Victoria Blue		National Championships
Oliver	Marshall	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Sandy	Marshall	over 50	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Cameron	McKenzie	u/21	Victoria		National Indoor Championships
Cameron	McKenzie	u/21	Australia	Champions	East Asian Hockey Indoor Challenge
Hugh	McLaughlin	u/18	Victoria	Premiers Coach	National Indoor Championships
Hugh	McLaughlin	u21	Victoria	Women's Team Coach	National Championships
Fran	Moodie	over 50	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Sami	Muir	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Cameron	Murray	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Asha	Newstead	u15	Victoria White		National Championships
Asha	Newstead	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Remy	Newstead	u/15	Victoria		National Indoor Championships
Alice	O'Brien	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Harriet	Ochsenbein	u21	Australia	Champions	East Asian Hockey Indoor Challenge
Ella	Paice	u13	Victoria Volt (2)		National Championships
Alex	Paterson	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Норе	Pengilly	u/13	Victoria		National Indoor Championships
Норе	Pengilly	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Keegan	Pengilly	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Eugenie	Rickard	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Charlotte	Ritman	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships



# **Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club**

Charlotte	Ritman	u16	School Sport Victoria	3rd	Schools Sports Australia,
					National Championships
Lyndon	Robertson	over 50	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Victor	Romagosa	u18	Victoria	Girls Assistant Coach	National Championships
Jonny	Spincer	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Jonny	Spincer	u13	Victoria Venom (1)		National Championships
Nick	Spincer	u15	Victoria Blue		National Championships
Nick	Spincer	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Daniel	Suzor	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
William	Tadgell	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Enya	Talbot	u15	Victoria Blue		National Championships
Enya	Talbot	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Enya	Talbot	u16	School Sport Victoria	3rd	Schools Sports Australia,
					National Championships
Mridula	Thomas	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Niveda	Thomas	u12	School Sport Victoria		Schools Sports Australia,
					National Championships
Niveda	Thomas	u13	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Kris	Tulloch	over 55	Victoria		National Masters Championships
Stirling	Walmsley	u12	School Sport Victoria	train on	Schools Sports Australia,
					National Championships
Bennett	West	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Luke	Westmore	u17	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Olivia	Wood	u15	Victoria Blue		National Championships
Olivia	Wood	u15	Central Metro Flames		Junior State Championships
Trish	Young	over 55	Victoria		National Masters Championships